
 

- | Page 1 | - 
 

minutes 

Title of Meeting 129th Meeting of the Public Health Agency Board 

Date 21 January 2021 at 1.30pm 

Venue 12/22 Linenhall Street, Belfast 

 
 
Present   

 
Mr Andrew Dougal  
Mrs Olive MacLeod 
Dr Stephen Bergin 
Mr Rodney Morton  
 
Mr Stephen Wilson 
Alderman William Ashe 
Ms Deepa Mann-Kler  
Alderman Paul Porter  
Professor Nichola Rooney  
Mr Joseph Stewart 
 

- 
- 
- 
- 
 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
 

Chair (via video link) 
Interim Chief Executive (via video link) 
Interim Director of Public Health (via video link) 
Director of Nursing and Allied Health Professionals 
(via video link) 
Interim Director of Operations (via video link) 
Non-Executive Director (via video link) 
Non-Executive Director (via video link) 
Non-Executive Director (via video link) 
Non-Executive Director (via video link) 
Non-Executive Director (via video link) 
 

In Attendance   
Dr Aideen Keaney  
Ms Marie Roulston  
 
Mr Lindsay Stead 
Mr Robert Graham 
 

- 
- 
 
- 
- 

Director of Quality Improvement (via video link) 
Director of Social Care and Children, HSCB (via 
video link) 
Interim Director of Finance, HSCB (via video link) 
Secretariat 
 

Apologies   
Mr John-Patrick Clayton 
 

- 
 

Non-Executive Director 

 

1/21 Item 1 – Welcome and Apologies 
 

1/21.1 
 

 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.  Apologies were noted 
from Mr John Patrick Clayton. 
 

2/21 
 

Item 2 – Declaration of Interests 
 

2/21.1 
 
 

The Chair asked if anyone had interests to declare relevant to any items 
on the agenda.  No declarations were made. 
 
 
 
 



 

- | Page 2 | - 
 

3/21 Item 3 – Minutes of previous meeting held on 17 December 2020 
 

3/21.1 
 
 

The minutes of the Board meeting held on 17 December 2020 were 
APPROVED as an accurate record of that meeting. 

4/21 Item 4 – Matters Arising 
 

4/21 
 
 

The Chair advised that he had contacted Ms Jennifer Lamont to get 
information on the costs of contact tracing. 

5/21 
 

Item 5 – Chair’s Business 
 

5/21.1 
 
 

The Chair presented his Report and said that it is important that PHA 
continues to work to provide support to those who are asked to self-
isolate.  He noted that in England a scheme has been launched whereby 
people will be given a one-off payment of £500, but he noted that there 
has been a high rejection rate.  He added that he had spoken to 
AdviceNI given that surveys in GB indicate that only 30% of people who 
are asked to self-isolate actually do so.  He noted that If PHA is reaching 
95% of contacts but only 30% of these in fact isolating, this means that 
less than 29% of the overall target group is isolating. 
  

6/21 Item 6 – Chief Executive’s Report 
 

6/21.1 
 
 
 

6/21.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/21/3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/21.4 

The Interim Chief Executive presented her Report and thanked the 
Executive Directors for giving a flavour of the work that is going on within 
their directorates at this time. 
 
The Interim Chief Executive said that PHA had hoped that the reduction 
in the number of daily positive cases would allow for a small amount of 
breathing space, but the Department of Health has requested that PHA 
undertake work in relation to genome sequencing and to examine the 
impact of the vaccination programme and the profile of the disease in 
care homes.  She advised members that an issue has arisen with FFP3 
masks produced by local company and a team is looking into this.  She 
reported that the Directors had a workshop on Tuesday with some of the 
Assistant Directors to consider the report of the Hussey Review. 
 
Mr Morton reported that in relation to the study being undertaken in care 
homes, it has been noted that a number of care homes continue to 
experience outbreaks but the death rate, particularly during the second 
wave, is much lower in Northern Ireland compared to other parts of the 
UK and Ireland, which he felt was due to work carried out by PHA in 
conjunction with social care staff in HSCB.  He acknowledged that 
although more lives had been saved, there was a cost in terms of the 
emotional side with people not being able to visit relatives.  The Chair 
said that it would be useful to have actual data in terms of the rates and 
number of deaths avoided in order to make those comparisons. 
 
The Chair asked whether PHA has an academic partner for the genome 



 

- | Page 3 | - 
 

 
 
 
 

6/21.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/21.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/21.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/21.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/21.9 
 
 
 

6/21.10 

therapy study.  Dr Bergin advised that PHA is working with COG 
(COVID-19 Genomics) UK as well as Queen’s University and the 
laboratories at the Royal Victoria Hospital. 
 
The Chair said that he had a concern in relation to bowel screening as 
he noted that two of the HSC Trusts are not in a position to continue this 
screening.  Dr Bergin noted that during the first wave of the pandemic 
screening services came under a lot of pressure and that while the 
programmes are now running again, there is a specific risk in relation to 
bowel screening.  He explained that bowel screening is an end-to-end 
pathway whereby an individual may receive a result which then requires 
a endoscopy to be carried out.  However, he advised that two Trusts do 
not currently have the surgical and nursing staff to carry this out as they 
are required to support other parts of the service.  He said that the 
situation is being monitored closely and that the Minister will have to 
make any final decision. 
 
Alderman Porter asked about the impact of COVID-19 on services and 
asked if an analysis has been undertaken of when services can be 
brought back to pre-pandemic levels now that there is a vaccine.  Dr 
Bergin agreed that there has been an impact and said that the number 
of cancer deaths that could be connected to COVID-19 is high.  He 
added that there is a programme to get services restored. 
 
Mr Stewart said that he would be keen to understand how PHA is 
capturing the learning from this pandemic to help inform lessons for the 
future.  He also asked whether PHA’s modelling exceeded the number 
of tests and daily cases given a figure of almost 3,000 cases a day was 
projected.  He asked how PHA was able to flex its contact tracing model.  
The Interim Chief Executive acknowledged that when the numbers first 
began to rise at the end of October PHA was in the process of recruiting 
staff.  She explained that PHA uses the modelling to determine how 
many contact tracing hours are required and uses the ECDC model for 
doing so.  She said that PHA was fortunate in that it was able to attract a 
range of full time and part time staff and has a large bank of staff.   
 
The Interim Chief Executive advised that when the restrictions were 
eased PHA knew that the modelling was suggesting there could be up to 
5,000 cases a day so in addition to the new staff recruited PHA also 
made a call out to staff internally and many stepped up to be trained.  
On New Year’s Day she advised that there were almost 2,500 cases, 
each with 2-3 contacts and PHA managed to reach 92-93% of these 
cases and their contacts within 24/48 hours.  She said that this work 
played a substantial role in breaking the chain of infection. 
 
The Interim Chief Executive said that demands on respiratory services 
are falling slightly but the overall health system remains under pressure 
and will take a long time to return to normal. 
 
The Interim Chief Executive advised that the contact tracing team is 



 

- | Page 4 | - 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/21.11 
 
 
 

6/21.12 
 
 
 
 
 

6/21.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/21.14 
 
 
 
 

6/21.15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

working well because in addition to the contact tracers there are staff 
looking at data and analytics to identify clusters and new variants.  She 
also referred to the testing work led by Dr Brid Farrell as well as the 
work being done with care homes, schools and special schools.  She 
said that although the vaccine is now being rolled out, the testing 
programme continues to expand, there is adequate staffing and that 
work is now commencing to look at planning for next winter. 
 
Mr Stewart said that his wish was to be assured that PHA had a plan in 
place and had been able to cope and he said he was satisfied following 
the update given by the Interim Chief Executive.   
 
The Interim Chief Executive explained that PHA did not wish to go down 
the route of a call centre model.  She said that when making telephone 
call contact tracers make an assessment in relation to individual’s needs 
and direct them to AdviceNI if appropriate.  She said that follow up calls 
do take place and PHA is looking out for the wellbeing of people. 
 
Professor Rooney noted two separate reports from the public health and 
nursing, midwifery and AHP directorates in relation to PHA involvement 
with education and asked if these were two separate projects or the 
same one.  The Interim Chief Executive replied that they were the same 
project and noted the difficulty with separate reports.  Professor Rooney 
asked about PHA’s role in terms of schools and mental health given the 
issues about exams.  The Interim Chief Executive advised that the 
Health Improvement team, through the programmes it commissions for 
young people and families, is providing support and she proposed 
inviting someone from that team along to give members an overview of 
this work (Action – Interim Chief Executive). 
 
Professor Rooney noted the high number of applicants for a post in PHA 
and asked if these were external candidates.  The Interim Chief 
Executive said that they were and she was pleased to see that there are 
people who wish to come and work for the PHA. 
 
Professor Rooney noted that the 3 HSCQI projects referenced in the 
Report are particularly important in relation to COVID-19, for example 
the staff psychological wellbeing study was imperative due to huge 
pressures on frontline staff and sickness levels, and the technology 
project on connecting people who are isolated.  She expressed concern 
that the HSCQI staff involved in them were redeployed so she sought 
clarity as to whether the projects have been stopped.  Dr Keaney 
clarified that the projects have been paused and she hoped that they 
would be up and running again in February.  Dr Keaney noted the point 
about the high number of applicants for the post in her team and said 
that she could recruit more staff, but there is no funding to do so.  The 
Chair expressed his concern about the redeployment of staff saying that 
HSCQI is an area that needs proper growth.  The Interim Chief 
Executive explained that staff have only been redeployed for the month 
of January and that some of the HSCQI work is Trust work and Trust 



 

- | Page 5 | - 
 

 
 

6/21.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/21.17 
 
 
 

6/21.18 

staff have been redeployed to work on the COVID-19 response.   
 
Mr Morton said that PHA has enacted its contingency plan whereby 
programmes are stood down on a risk assessed basis and decisions are 
not taken lightly.  The Chair asked whether external people should be 
recruited to contact tracing, but the Interim Chief Executive explained 
that it takes time to train and money to set up licenses and that the PHA 
staff who are helping out are only doing so one day per week in order to 
maintain their skills. 
 
Mrs Roulston returned to the issue of mental health in schools and 
advised that the emotional and wellbeing cell is looking at schools as 
well as the effects of long COVID. 
 
Dr Keaney commented that COVID-19 is one of many factors having an 
impact on resources and there are issues which need to be resolved 
regarding funding, on which she would welcome further discussion. 
 

7/21 Item 7 – Finance Report (PHA/01/01/21) 
 

 
 

7/21.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/21.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/21.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/21.4 
 

During this item Ms Mann-Kler left the meeting. 
 
Mr Stead advised that this would be his last month delivering the 
Finance Report and that next month Mr Colin Bradley will taking on the 
role of Acting Director of Finance.  Moving onto the report, he said that 
PHA’s financial position remains largely similar to previous reports with a 
year-end break even position being forecast.  He said that the 
Department will retract a small amount of slippage. 
 
Mr Stead indicated that this month’s position is showing an underspend 
of around £1.6m which he said was a budgetary issue.  He highlighted a 
concern regarding the ability of organisations with which PHA holds 
contracts to be able to spend money due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  
He said that there is regular correspondence with the Department of 
Health regarding the financial position.  With regard to Transformation 
funding, he said a small amount of slippage is anticipated against this 
budget. 
 
Mr Stead moved onto COVID-19 funding and reported that as a result of 
the difficulties in predicting some of the elements of this work, for 
example the costs of contact tracing, the enhanced health protection 
service and the vaccination programme, there may need to be a revision 
made to the £10.3m bid made to the Department.  He assured members 
that all areas are being kept under review and that HSCB would link with 
the Department on PHA’s behalf.  He explained that the process for 
allocating COVID-19 monies means that organisations only receive the 
funds which they require. 
 
Mr Stead said that going forward into 2021/22 the overall budget will be 
tight and a submission has been made to relevant policy leads in the 



 

- | Page 6 | - 
 

 
 

7/21.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/21.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/21.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/21.8 
 
 
 
 
 

Department across a range of inescapable pressures. 
 
Mr Stead informed members that work is ongoing in relation to an 
options paper in terms of how the finance function will operate in the 
future.  He explained the Governance Steering Group has been 
established and that Miss Rosemary Taylor from PHA sits on this group.  
He added that one of its workstreams relates to finance and that he and 
Ms Brigitte Worth (Director of Finance, Department of Health) have been 
asked to develop an options paper on the finance function for the 
Steering Group by 5 February.  He said that a short life working group 
has been established and that Miss Taylor and Mr Stephen Murray are 
representing PHA.  He advised that a paper will be developed which will 
look at various options and outline the pros and cons of each and that 
further work will then be required to determine the best way forward and 
he agreed to share a first draft of this paper with the PHA Board. 
 
Mr Stewart thanked Mr Stead for his Report and also for facilitating a 
meeting earlier this week.  He sought assurance that the Department will 
fund the COVID-19 bid.  He also noted that there is a considerable 
amount of year-end projected spend on the communications budget and 
he sought assurance that this would be spent and not further add to 
PHA’s surplus, and if any surplus would then be used to cover some of 
the COVID-19 expenditure.  Mr Stead said that he was confident that 
DoH will fund the £8m required to cover the COVID-19, but his only 
concern was PHA’s ability to fully utilise the funding.  In relation to the 
communications spend, he said that he is actively encouraging budget 
holders to ensure that they spend their budgets so as not to further 
increase the current surplus.  Mr Wilson added that in relation to the 
communications budget, it is not unusual to see a higher volume of 
spend in the final quarter and that is when media partners submit their 
invoices.  He said that there remains a challenge for PHA as some of its 
planned work has had to be cut short due to the ongoing demands of 
COVID-19 and he hoped to be able to allocate funding towards that area 
of work.  He advised that there was no sense that there would be a 
considerable underspend in this budget area. 
 
The Chair asked if there was virement to re-allocate money and 
proposed that in addition to the normal Annual Report and Accounts, 
PHA should produce a summary that is more amenable for the general 
public.  Mr Wilson advised that there was no reason that the budget 
could not be reallocated, but in terms of producing such a report, the 
main issues would be timing and having the resources, but it is 
something to which he is giving consideration. 
 
Mr Stewart noted the comment in the Report that the impact of PHA 
being able to fund the first 1% of pay awards over the last 2 years is 
being masked by the number of vacant posts and he asked if there was 
going to any change in terms of ALBs having to meet this cost.  Mr 
Stead agreed with Mr Stewart’s point that PHA would have difficulty in 
meeting these costs if all its posts were filled.  He noted that as part of 



 

- | Page 7 | - 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

7/21.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/21.10 
 

the planning for 2021/22 he did not think that ALBs were going to be 
levied with any efficiency targets so he did not know whether that would 
then help PHA with meeting the costs of the pay award.  Mr Stewart said 
that if proposals have been sent to the Department regarding next year’s 
budget he would welcome the PHA Board seeing these.   
 
The Chair said that he would be concerned that if PHA’s surplus were 
used to cover the costs of COVID-19 this would means that PHA’s 
historical accounts would not be a true representation since it would not 
show that programmes have been reduced or cut because of COVID-19.  
He thanked Mr Stead for his Report and for his support to the Board 
over the last two months. 
 
The Board noted the Finance Report. 
 

8/21 Item 8 – Update on COVID-19 
 

8/21.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8/21.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8/21.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr Bergin returned to a point made by Mr Stewart earlier in the meeting 
regarding how learning from the pandemic is being captured.  In the first 
wave he explained that the Gold/Silver/Bronze arrangements were in 
place and other agencies were relying on PHA for advice and guidance 
but during the second, and now third, waves, there is better co-
ordination and better working with other Government departments.  
Internally, he said that during the first wave there were many demands 
being placed on PHA for information on a daily basis and that going 
forward PHA wants to do better in areas such as data intelligence and 
analytics.  He outlined the current arrangements saying that each 
Thursday there is an internal meeting where all cells can connect and 
update each other and then each directorate can go and do its own 7-
day planning. 
 
Dr Bergin advised that the Hussey Report made 4 recommendations, 
the first of which related to strengthening the public health system in 
Northern Ireland.  He said that some workshops have been held to look 
at this and he hoped that as COVID-19 moves from being epidemic to 
endemic work will be done to strengthen the health protection function 
and that a business case has already been submitted to the Department 
of Health. 
 
Dr Bergin said that another recommendation in the Hussey Report 
concerned developing the science and intelligence capability and there 
was reference in the Report to the recruitment of a Chief Data Scientist.  
He added that the final recommendation was that PHA should become a 
more effective organisation and work has commenced to look at this.  
He said that the genome therapy work will allow PHA to manage 
outbreaks better.  With regard to data intelligence and analytics, he said 
that PHA has the necessary assets but it is about joining these up.  He 
felt that all staff in the organisation should have a minimum level of 
health protection training.  Finally, when considering a public health 
competency framework, he suggested that PHA should become a public 



 

- | Page 8 | - 
 

 
 

8/21.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8/21.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8/21.6 
 
 

health school training its staff of the future. 
 
Mr Stewart thanked Dr Bergin for his overview and appreciated that this 
will be an area that the Board will look at in more detail.  In terms of the 
current pandemic, he asked whether any analysis is being carried out of 
the concentration in different areas.  Dr Bergin said that the disease has 
ping-ponged across the country and there remain unknowns but he 
advised that the Duty Room can pick up intelligence which can then 
result in a mobile testing unit being deployed to a certain area and then 
communications and Health Improvement staff can get messages out to 
people giving advice on self-isolation and where to get support. 
 
Dr Keaney said that the pandemic has offered an opportunity for lessons 
to be learnt from a QI perspective.  She explained that in the early days 
of the pandemic the senior management teams of HSCB and PHA 
would have met in a daily “huddle” using a QI methodology and she has 
completed a review of this way of working and recently delivered a 
presentation highlighting any learning for the future and suggested she 
could deliver the same presentation to the Board.  She noted that the 
“huddle” arrangements were stood up in a short period of time and it 
was clear that the two teams of staff were keen to learn and were 
committed to improvement.  The Chair said that he would welcome this 
presentation. 
 
Professor Rooney said that it is good to see that PHA is learning, and 
asked if there are any lessons that can be picked up internationally, for 
example New Zealand.  The Chair cited previous reference he had 
made to the approach undertaken in Taiwan. 
 

9/21 Item 9 – Update on PPI (PHA/02/01/21) 
 

 
 
 
 

9/21.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9/21.2 
 
 

Mr Martin Quinn joined the meeting for this item. 
 
During this item Dr Keaney left the meeting. 
 
Mr Quinn introduced the latest PPI Report and said that the team has 
been active in contributing to the PHA response to the COVID-19 
pandemic through its involvement with the communications cell, the 
knowledge management cell and the vaccine sub-group.  He advised 
that the team has maintained its work in the area of Transformation and 
has overseen projects worth up to £500k.  He added that there is now a 
higher level of demand for advice from the team which reinforces the 
need to build a critical mass of expertise.  He said that the team has 
been involved in areas such as Hyponatraemia, including the Duty of 
Candour workstream, as well as the Review of Urgent and Emergency 
Care, the No More Silos project and the RQIA Neurology Review. 
 
Mr Quinn reported that PHA led the development of Involvement 
Standards and these have been used to assist the development of UK-
wide standards and this work has published in a number of journals. 



 

- | Page 9 | - 
 

9/21.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9/21.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9/21.5 
 
 
 

9/21.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9/21.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9/21.8 
 
 
 

Mr Quinn said that COVID-19 has forced a change in mindset in terms 
of how the team can do its work given the public health restrictions.  He 
noted that some service users and carers are feeling a sense of isolation 
and marginalisation.  He said that trying to prioritise resources for 
COVID-19 has resulted in forgetting about other partners.  He added 
that the team is linking with Queen’s University and colleagues in the 
Behavioural Change team. 
 
Mr Quinn moved on to highlight some of the other recent successes of 
the team.  He advised that a series of bespoke co-production webinars 
took place which involved about 1,000 people.  He added that the 
Leading in Partnership Programme has commenced again and that the 
Health Minister joined an event which concluded one of the previous 
programmes and took the opportunity to encourage people to 
participate.  Mr Quinn said that the team has developed guidance, for 
example in how to reach hard to reach/easy to ignore groups being 
mindful of the limitations of technology that they may face.  He reported 
that a review of the HSC Engage website is taking place. 
 
Mr Quinn said that he is proud of the work of the team and going forward 
he hopes that the team will continue to lead by example.  He added that 
he hopes to organise some briefings through the Consultation Institute. 
 
The Chair commented that when he attends PPI events, it is always the 
same individuals who are present and he asked what is being done to 
get more people involved.  Mr Quinn said that PHA is collecting contact 
information from participants in webinars and through its partners in 
other PCE (Patient Client Experience) work as well as through 
colleagues in the PCC (Patient Client Council) in an attempt to build up 
a cohort.  Mr Morton added that PHA is looking to develop a new plan 
bringing together various strands of work including PPI, co-production 
and user experience and that this plan would allow the Board to see how 
PHA is aiming to be an exemplar organisation. 
 
The Chair asked about getting user involvement in areas such as 
screening.  Mr Morton said that he hopes to secure funding for an 
individual to come in and work alongside Mr Quinn’s team to bring that 
“lived experience voice” to PHA’s work.  Mr Quinn noted that there has 
previously been service user involvement in the AAA (Abdominal Aortic 
Aneurysm) programme and agreed that recruiting this new team 
member would be of great benefit.  The Chair asked if this work could be 
done using existing resources but Mr Quinn explained that there are 
currently many demands on the team, noting for example that one 
member is now working full time with the Department of Health on a 
specific project. 
 
Mr Stewart noted that there were many initiatives outlined in the Report, 
but felt that in order to increase buy-in there needed to be detail about 
the impact of all of this work, and he asked if there were any example of 
where PHA has made a real difference.  Mr Quinn said that there are 



 

- | Page 10 | - 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

9/21.9 
 
 

9/21.10 

many good examples of where PHA has made a difference.  He 
conceded that although PHA can rely on a critical mass of staff, service 
users and carers and there are examples of where quality improvements 
have been made, there is a need to communicate these successes 
more widely. 
 
The Chair thanked Mr Quinn for attending the meeting and delivering his 
presentation. 
 
The Board noted the update on Personal and Public Involvement. 
 

10/21 Item 10 - HIV Surveillance Report for Northern Ireland 2020 
(PHA/03/01/21) 
 

 
 

10/21.1 
 
 
 
 
 

10/21.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10/21.3 
 
 
 
 
 

10/21.4 
 
 
 
 
 

10/21.5 
 
 
 
 

10/21.6 
 
 

Dr Claire Neill joined the meeting for this item. 
 
Dr Neill gave a brief summary of the key points of the Report.  She 
advised that in 2019 there were 52 new first diagnoses of HIV in 
Northern Ireland compared to 80 in 2018 and less than the peak of 102 
in 2015.  She noted that for the first rate the number of new cases in 
heterosexuals was higher than that in gay and bisexual men. 
 
Dr Neill reported that there has been increased testing with a 14% 
increase in hospital settings.  She said that there is an increasing 
number of individuals being treated for HIV and this increase is due to 
not only new diagnoses, but people receiving antiretroviral therapy.  She 
noted that although Northern Ireland’s overall prevalence rate is low, the 
rate in Belfast is reaching a level where expanded testing in primary and 
secondary care would be recommended. 
 
Dr Neill explained that there is a UN target that by 2020 90% of people 
living with HIV should know their status, 90% of those diagnosed should 
receive treatment and 90% of treatment will have viral suppression.  She 
advised that these targets have been revised to 95% by 2030, but that 
Northern Ireland is already meeting two these targets. 
 
In terms of service developments, Dr Neill reported that the introduction 
of PrEP (pre-exposure prophylaxis) has contributed to a decline in 
diagnoses, particularly for gay and bisexual men.  Going forward, she 
said that PHA will continue to promote safe sex messages and ensure 
there is continued access to testing. 
 
Mr Stewart asked if there is any particular reason for the increased 
prevalence in the Belfast area.  Dr Neill said that there is not and noted 
that although treatments are improving, there still remains the risk of 
transmission. 
 
The Chair asked if there is any data available in terms of years of life 
lost.  Dr Neill said that she was not aware of such data.  The Chair 
asked if there has been any research to determine if societal attitudes 



 

- | Page 11 | - 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

10/21.7 

towards HIV have changed.  Dr Neill noted that although she did not 
know of any research, there are programmes in Trust aiming to reduce 
the stigma towards individuals with HIV.  The Chair said that we should 
look to determine how to help individuals cope once they have been 
diagnosed with HIV. 
 
The Board noted the HIV Surveillance Report. 
 

11/21 Item 11 – Level of Funding for Health Research in Northern Ireland 
 

11/21.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11/22.2 
 
 
 

The Chair noted that at the last Board meeting he had raised the point 
that Northern Ireland does not receive the same level of research 
funding as other parts of the United Kingdom.  He said that following the 
meeting he had discussed this issue with both Dr Janice Bailie and the 
Department of Health.  He explained that funding for research was 
allocated throughout the United Kingdom by means of the Barnett 
formula  .However, he added that the Northern Ireland Executive in the 
past had not allocated the appropriate amount to Research and 
Development here and therefore our ability to participate in UK wide 
research projects was compromised and Northern Ireland was often 
subsidised as the “poor relation“. The Chair reiterated his view that in 
the light of the tremendous success of research in producing vaccines in 
such a short period of time there should be support among the public 
and among MLAs to allocate the rightful amount to this vital area of 
work. 
 
Mr Stewart asked how this can be taken forward.  The Chair said that 
the Department of Health was in agreement with the need for additional 
funds. However he would find out how to go about making the request 
for increased research funding in line with Barnett consequentials 
(Action – Chair). 
 

12/21 Item 12 - Allocation of funds by the PHA 
 

12/21.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12/21.2 
 
 
 

12/21.3 

The Chair advised that this issue was raised at the last meeting and that 
he and Mr Stewart had had a conversation with Mr Stead concerning 
this matter, and he had also spoken to Ms Colette Rogers who assured 
him that all PHA contracts with community and voluntary sector 
organisations are performance managed.  He added that when a 
contract comes up for renewal they are put out to tender but he recalled 
a conversation that he had with a previous Chief Executive who said that 
in order for smaller organisations to be able to bid successfully for these 
tenders, they should form conglomerates in order to compete effectively 
against the larger organisations. 
 
Alderman Porter said that while he appreciates that there are legacy 
issues he wanted to be assured that there is equality in terms of 
contracts being awarded across both sides of the community. 
 
Mr Stewart noted that while clarity has been given that the funding is 



 

- | Page 12 | - 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12/21.4 

properly dispersed and there are performance management 
arrangements in place, he felt that the issue was whether by continuing 
to provide funding to the same organisations, PHA was inadvertently 
creating an inequality elsewhere.  Alderman Porter added that his issue 
is in terms of the equity and whether contracts are given out in areas of 
higher deprivation.  Alderman Ashe said that he had an issue with 
regard to how applications for funding are advertised and the openness 
of the process. 
 
The Interim Chief Executive said that as this matter does not appear to 
have been resolved to the satisfaction of members she would ask a 
representative from Health Improvement to come along and explain the 
process.  Mr Wilson said that Mr Stephen Murray should attend from a 
procurement perspective (Action – Interim Chief Executive, Mr 
Wilson). 
  

13/21 Item 13 – Any Other Business 
 

13/21.1 The Chair said that it is important that a meeting is organised for the 
Board to meet to discuss the Hussey Report.  The Interim Chief 
Executive said that Mr Morton, Dr Bergin and Mr Wilson had put 
together a short presentation on some initial thinking and there needs to 
be dialogue with Trade Union colleagues.  It was agreed that a date 
would be finalised (Action – Chair, Secretariat). 
 

14/21 Item 14 – Details of Next Meeting 
 

 Thursday 18 February 2021 at 1:30pm 

Fifth Floor Meeting Room, 12/22 Linenhall Street, Belfast, BT2 7ES 

 Signed by Chair:  
 

 
 
Date:  18 February 2021 

 


